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Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of JSW Bengal Steel Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of JSW Bengal Steel
Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31 2019, the Statement of
Protit and Loss, including the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement
and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013, as amended (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31,2019, its loss including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity
for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Ind
AS Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with
the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act
and the Rules thereunder, and we have fultilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sutticient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial
statements.

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

We draw attention to Note 25.11 in the standalone Ind AS financial statements, which indicates that
there are material uncertainties relating to the allocation of coal and iron ore mines to the Company and
its consequential impact on the implementation of the Project. The events described in the said Note to
the standalone Ind AS financial statements indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. However, for reasons stated
in the said Note, the standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Company have been prepared on a
going concern basis. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

— SRBC&COLLP, aLimited Liability Partnership with LLP Identity No. AAB-4318
Regd. Office : 22, Camac Street, Block ‘B’, 3rd Floor, Kolkata-700 016
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, but
does not include the standalone Ind AS financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is matertally
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Responsibilities of Management for the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash tlows
and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act
read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone Ind AS financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the standalone Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone Ind AS financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
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misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these standalone Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. [dentify and assess the risks ot material misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sutficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

) Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

: Evaluate the appropriateness ot accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, tuture events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone Ind AS financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone Ind AS financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identity during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Other Matter

The Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2018, included in these
standalone Ind AS financial statements, have been audited by the predecessor auditor who expressed an
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unmodified opinion with material uncertainty related to going concern on those statements on April 21,

2018.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

l. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the

Central

Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in

the “Annexure 17 a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2, As requ
()

(b)

(©)

(d)

(e

()

(h)

(1)

ired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity
dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

The going concern matter described in Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern
paragraph above, in our opinion, may have an adverse effect on the functioning of the
Company;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2019 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as
on March 31, 2019 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of
the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
ot the Company with reference to these standalone Ind AS financial statements and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in *“Annexure 27
to this report;

[n our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2019 has
been paid / provided by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions
of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act;

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us:

The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact
its financial position;
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1. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses;

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transterred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For SRB C & CO LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

per Vishal Bansal” (
Partner \&2
Membership Number: 097546 .
Place of Signature: Kolkata

Date: April 26,2019
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ANNEXURE “1” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph | under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our
report of even date)

(0

(i)

(i)

(iv)

)

(vi)

(vii)

(a)

(b)

()

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of fixed assets.

All fixed assets were physically verified during the year by the management in accordance
with a regular programme of veritication which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard
to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were
noticed on such verification.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the title deeds of
immovable properties included in property, plant and equipment are held in the name of the
Company.

The Company does not have any inventory and accordingly, the requirements under
paragraph 3 (ii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted
any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other
parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013.
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(iii)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order are not applicable to
the Company and hence not commented upon.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not advanced loans to directors / to a company in which the Director is interested to
which provisions of section 185 of the Companies Act 2013 apply and hence not commented
upon. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in
respect of making investments, as applicable. In our opinion and according to the
information and explanations given to us, the company has not given any loans /guarantees/
provided security to which the provisions of section 186 apply and hence not commented
upon.

[n our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not accepted any deposit within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the
Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the provisions
of clause 3 (v) of the Order are not applicable.

Since the Company has not commenced commercial production of steel, in our opinion, the
provisions of clause 3(vi) ot the Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues:

a) The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory
dues including provident fund, income-tax, goods and service tax, cess and other
statutory dues applicable to it. As informed the provisions relating to employees’ state
insurance, customs duty, excise Duty, sales tax, value added tax and service tax were

;. not applicable to the Company during the year.
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(viii)

(ix)

)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

b) According to the information and explanation given to us, there were no undisputed
amounts payable in respect of provident fund, income-tax, goods and service tax, cess
and other statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than
six months from the date they became payable. As informed the provisions relating to
employees’ state insurance, customs duty and excise duty, sales tax, value added tax
and service tax were not applicable to the Company during the year.

¢) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of income
tax and cess which have not been deposited on account of any dispute. As informed
the provisions relating to sales-tax, service tax, customs duty, excise duty and value
added tax were not applicable to the Company during the year.

The Company did not have any outstanding loans or borrowing dues in respect of a financial
institution or bank or to government or dues to debenture holders during the year.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has
not raised any money way of initial public offer / further public offer / debt instruments and
term loans hence, reporting under clause (ix) is not applicable to the Company and hence
not commented upon.

Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair
view of the financial statements and according to the information and explanations given by
the management, we report that no fraud by the company or no fraud / material fraud on the
company by the officers and employees of the Company has been noticed or reported during
the year.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the managerial
remuneration has been paid / provided in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated
by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013.

In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of clause
3(xii) of the order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, transactions with
the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where
applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as
required by the applicable accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has
complied with provisions of section 42 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of preferential
allotment of shares during the year under review. According to the information and
explanations given by the management, we report that the amounts raised, have been used
for the purposes for which the funds were raised. During the year, the Company, according
to the information and explanations given to us, has not made any private placement of shares
and has not issued any fully or partly convertible debentures.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him as
referred to in section 192 of Companies Act, 2013.
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(xvi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of section 45-1A
of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 are not applicable to the Company.

For SRB C & COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

Niza

per Vishal Bansal

Partner

Membership Number: 097546
Place of Signature: Kolkata
Date: April 26, 2019
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ANNEXURE “2” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF JSW BENGAL STEEL LIMTED

(Referred to in paragraph 1(g) under “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements™ section of
our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of JSW Bengal Steel Limited
(“the Company™) as of March 31, 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013 (as amended).

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing as specitied under section 143(10) of
the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and, both
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to
these standalone financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.
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Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements and
their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
standalone financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
standalone Ind AS financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference to these
Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these standalone
financial statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference to
these Standalone Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference
to these standalone financial statements, including the possibility ot collusion or improper management
override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference
to these standalone financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial
control over financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements and such internal financial
controls over financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements were operating

10
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effectively as at March 31, 2019 , based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India.

For SRBC & COLLP

Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

per Vishal Bansal—"~ / '

Partner
Membership Number: 097546

Place of Signature: Kolkata
Date: April 26,2019

11



JSW Bengal Steel Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2019

(Rupees in lacs)

As at As at
31st March 2019 31st March 2018
Notes
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 3 20,751 9,588
Capital work-in-progress 3 1,248 14,358
Intangible assets 4 - 1
Financial Assets
(i) Investments 5 13,719 13,652
(i) Other financial assets 6 84 384
Other non-current assets 7 10,041 8,628
45,843 46,611
Current assets
Financial Assets
(i) Investments 8 334 -
(if) Cash and cash equivalents 9 33 63
(iiiy Bank Balances other than (i) above 10 39 27
(iv) Other financial assets 6 68 120
Current Tax Assets(net) 1 3 .
Other current assets 7 107 91
584 301
Total assets 46,427 46,912
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Equity Share Capital 12 45,821 45,392
Other Equity
(i) Retained earnings 13 (2,911) (2,108)
(it) Other reserves 13 50 50
(iii) Share Warrant 13 1,398 1,398
TOTAL EQUITY 44,358 44,732
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Provisions 14 17 14
Other non-current liabilities 15 1,281 1,281
1,298 1,295
Current liabilities
Financial Liabilities
(i) Trade payables 16
(A) Total outstanding dues of small enterprises and
micro enterprises - -
(B) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than small
enterprises and micro enterprises 65 68
(i) Other financial liabilities 17 683 622
Other current liabilities 15 5 15
Provisions 14 18 98
Current Tax Liabilities (net) 18 - 81
771 884
Total liabilities 2,069 2,179
Total equity and liabilities 46,427 46,911

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For SRBC & COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 32:

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of JSW Bengal
Steel Limited

py
\/A«;‘; 4/ ﬂ
-

Biswadig/mlp&af
Director Whole Time Director

DIN: 00048258 DIN: 07145733

s 1)

Partha Bose Pri'y_anf(a Shetty
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

W09

Purnendu Pandey

Partner
Membership Number: 0975
Place of Signature: Kolkata
Date: April 26, 2019




JSW Bengal Steel Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March 2019
(Rupees in lacs)

A Year ended 31st March  Year ended 31st March
|
Particulars Notes 2019 2018
Other income 19 135 118
Total Income (i) 135 118
Expenses
Employee benefits expense 20 295 302
Depreciation and amortization expense 3 282 214
Other expenses 21 418 317
Total expense (ii) 995 833
Loss before tax (iii) = (i - ii) (860) (715)
Tax expense:
Current Tax 23 26
Adjustments of tax relating to earlier periods (81) -
Total tax expenses (iv) (58) 26
Loss for the year (v =iii - iv) (802) (741)
Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods:
(i) Re-measurement gains/(losses) on defined benefit
plans (1) (2)
Other comprehensive income for the year (net of tax) (vi) (1) (2)
Total comprehensive income for the year (v -vi) (803) (743)
Earnings per equity share
( Nominal value of Rs.10/- per share ( March 31st 2018 Rs 10 per
share)
- Basic (0.18) (0.16)
- Diluted (0.18) (0.16)
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
As per our report of even date
For SRBC&COLLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of JSW Bengal

Chartered Accountants Steel Limited

ICAl Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003 5
4 z A
/ b rtu“
e

per Vishal Biswadip Gupt Purnendu Pandey
Partner Director Whole Time Director
Membership Number: 09754 DIN: 00048258 DIN: 07145733
Place of Signature: Kolkata W
Date: April 26, 2019 M i) W
_ :
Partha Bose Pf’iyanka Shetty

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary



JSW Bengal Steel Limited
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2019

(Rupees in lacs)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
Cash flows from operating activities
Loss before tax (860) (715)
Adjustments to reconcile Loss before tax to net Cash Flows:
Depreciation and amortization expense 282 214
Interest income earned on Fixed Deposits (2) (6)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 93 *
CWIP written off during the year 38 -
Net gain arising on disposal/remeasurement of financia! assets measured at fair
value through profit or loss C) (1
Working capital adjustments:
(Increase)/Decrease in financial assets and other assets 416 (27)
Increase/(Decrease) in trade payables (4) 41
Increase/(Decrease) in provisions (77) 4
(Decrease)fincrease in financial liabilities and other liabilities 51 2
Cash flows from operating activities (71) (487)
Income taxes (paid)/ refund received (27) (31)
Net cash used in operating activities (98) (518)]
Cash flows from Investing activities
Purchasse of property, plant and equipment (1) M
Proceeds/adjustements on disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment and CWIP 32 2
Payments for Capital Work in Progress - (187)
Investments in Subsidiary (67) (53)
Proceeds from /(Payments to) acquire financial assets - 232
Interest received - 5
Amounts advanced to related parties - (38)
Investment in mutual fund (325)
Deposit/Advance received from related parties - 294
Repayments made to related parties - (500)
Deposits placed with bank - (27)
Payments for purchase of Financial Assets, mandatorily measured through profit or - (25)
loss
Proceeds from disposal of Financial Assets mandatorily measured through profit or - 26
loss
Net cash generated from /(used in) Investing activities (361) (272)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of share capital 429 500
Net cash generated from financing activities 429 500
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (29) (290)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 63 363
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (Refer Note 9) 34 63
Balances with bank
- On current accounts 32 62
Cash on hand 1 1
33 63

For SRBC & COLLP
Chartered Accountants

ICAIl Firm Reglw ar; 32453825' 30
per Vishal Bans.

Partner “( / /

Membership Number: 097546
Place of Signature: Kolkata
Date: April 26, 2019

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

JSW Bengal Steel Limited
~ ' %&—AQ\X

Biswadip G Purnendu Pandey
Director Whole Time Director

DIN: 00048258 DIN; 071457
fu

Kert
Priyan/ka Shetty

Partha Bose
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary




JSW BENGAL STEEL LIMITED

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31st March , 2019

a. Equity Share Capital (Refer Note 12)

Equity shares of INR 10/- each issued, subscribed and fully paid

Particulars
At 1st April 2017

Add: Issue of equity shares during the period

At 31st March 2018

Add: Issue of equity shares during the period

At 31st March 2019

b. Other Equity (Refer Note 13)
For the year ended 31st March 2019

Numbers
{Rupees in lacs)
44,89,15,000 44,892
50,00,000 500
45,39,15,000 45,392
42,90,000 429
45,82,05,000 45,821

(Rupees in lacs)

Reserves and Surplus

Particulars General Reserve Retained earnings Share Warrants Total
As at 1st April 2018 50 (2,108) 1,398 (660)
Loss for the year . (802) - (802)
Other comprehensive Income for the year - [ - (1)
As at 31st March, 2019 50 (2,911) 1,398 (1,463)

For the year ended 31st March,2018

(Rupees in lags)

Reserves and Surplus

Particulars General Reserve Retained earnings Share Warrants Total
As at 1st April 2017 50 (1,365) 1,398 83
Loss for the year - (741) - (741)
Other comprehensive Income for the year - {2) - (2)
As at 31st March 2018 50 (2,108) 1,398 (660)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For SRBC & COLLP
Chartered Accountants

ICAIl Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

per Vishal Bapsal
Partner
Membership Number: 097546
Place of Signature: Kolkata
Date: April 26, 2019

Biswadip Gupta
Director
DIN: 00048258

Kert

Partha Bose
Chief Financial Officer

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of JSW Bengal Steel
Limited

oW,

Purnendu Pandey )/
Whole Time Director
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JSW Bengal Steel Limited

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31° March, 2019

1. Corporate Information

JSW Bengal Steel Limited (“the Company™) is a public limited company incorporated for setting up
an Integrated Steel Plant in the State of West Bengal at Salboni, PaschimMedinipur. The registered
office of the Company is located at Mumbai, Maharashtra.

(Refer 23.11 for the project status and current activities of the Company)

2. Significant Accounting Policies
I. Statement of Compliance

The standalone financial statements comprise financial statements of JSW Bengal Steel Limited
(the Company) as at and for the year ended 31 March 2019. These standalone financial statements
have been prepared in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India
including Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under the Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015 as amended.

II. Exemption from preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements

Given below is the list of investments in subsidiaries made by the Company. There are no joint
ventures/ associates of the Company.

Name of the investee

Relationshiy

% voting
interest
held

Key business

Principal
place of
business

JSW Natural Resources

Subsidiary

100%

Company is in process of setting

India

India Limited up coal mines project at Kulti -
Sitarampur coal blocks in West
Bengal under sole and exclusive
coal raising agreement with
WBMDTCL dated 31st
March,2010

Company is in process of setting
up captive power plant project for
integrated Steel Plant (ISP) at
Salboni, PaschimMedinipur in

West Bengal

JSW Energy (Bengal)
Limited

Subsidiary | 100% India

The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of JSW Steel Limited (‘the Parent Company) which is
flagship company of JSW Group and is a leading integrated steel manufacturer in India. The
registered office of the Parent Company is located at Mumbai, Maharashtra. The Parent Company
publishes consolidated financial statements in accordance with Ind AS, which are available for
public use. When published, the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Parent Company are
available on its website, viz., https:/www.jsw.in/investors/steel#. The Company has informed its
shareholders regarding its intention of not preparing consolidated financial statements and they
have not objected to the same. Accordingly, the Company has used exemption from consolidation
and has prepared these Standalone Financial Statements which comprise the Balance Sheefas-at31
March, 2019, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Statement of Cash Flows and the _S_té)t‘eih




JSW Bengal Steel Limited

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31° March, 2019

Changes in Equity for the year ended as on that date, and accounting policies and other explanatory
information (together hereinafter referred to as 'Standalone Financial Statements' or 'financial
statements').

I1I1. Basisofpreparation

The Standalone Financial Statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for
certain financial instruments measured at fair values at the end of each reporting year, as explained
in the accounting policies below.

The functional currency of the Company is Indian Rupee (“INR”) which is the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the Company operates.Thefinancial statements are
presented in INR and all values are rounded to the nearest lacs (INR 00,000), except when
otherwise indicated.

These financial statements are approved for issue by the Board of Directors on April 26, 2019,
IV. Summary of significant accounting policies
Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair
value of an asset or a liability, the Company takes in to account the characteristics of the asset or
liability if market participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset
or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions that
are within the scope of Ind AS 102, leasing transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 17, and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable
value in Ind AS 2 or value in use in Ind AS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1,
2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and
the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurements in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
thatthe entity can access at the measurement date;

Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within level 1, that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

Current and non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current / non-
currentClassification.




JSW Bengal Steel Limited

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 315t March, 2019

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

e it is expected to be realised in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company’s normal
operating cycle.

e it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;
e itis expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting date; or

e it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to secttle a
liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

it is expected to be settled in the Company’s normal operating cycle;

it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded,;

it is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; or

the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least
12 months after the reporting date.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified asnon-current only.
Income recognition

Interest income is accrued on a time proportion basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and
at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Rental income: Rental income from subletting of properties is recognizedas per term of the
relevant agreements.

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Company as a lessor

Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership
transfer from the Company to the lessee. Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are
recorded asreceivables at the Company’s net investment in the leases. Finance lease_income is
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JSW Bengal Steel Limited

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31t March, 2019

allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the net
investment outstanding in respect of the lease.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Initial direct cost incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added
to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised on straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Company as a lessee

Assets held under finance leases are initially recognised as assets of the Company at their fair value
at the inception of the lease or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the Standalone balance sheet as a finance lease
obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses and reduction of the lease obligation so
as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance expenses
are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, unless they are directly attributable to qualifying
assets, in which case they are capitalised in accordance with the Company’s general policy on
borrowing costs. Contingent rentals are recognised as expenses in the years in which they are
incurred.

Lease payments under an operating lease are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the term of the relevant lease. Where the rentals are structured solely to increase in line with
expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases, such
increases are recognised in the year in which such benefits accrue. Contingent rentals arising under
operating leases are recognised as an expense in the year in which they are incurred.

Foreign CurrencyTransactions

The functional currency of the Company is determined on the basis of the primary economic
environment in  which it operates. The functional currency of the Company is Indian National
Rupee (INR).

The transactions in currencies other than the entity’s functional currency (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each
reporting year, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items
are recognised in profit or loss.

EmployeeBenefits

The Company makes contributions to both defined benefit and defined contribution schemes.
Provident Fund contributions are in the nature of defined contribution scheme in accordance with
Statute. The company recognises contribution payable to such fund as an expense, when an

employee renders the related service.

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit gratuity plan is determlned using the
projected unit credit method.




JSW Bengal Steel Limited

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31% March, 2019

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets
(excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised
immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through
OCI in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:
» The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
» The date that the Group recognises related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset.
The Group recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in
the consolidated statement of profit and loss:

» Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on
curtailments and non-routine settlements; and

» Net interest expense or income

The cost of providing long-term compensated absences are determined by independent actuary
using the projected unit credit method. Service costs and net interest expense or income is reflected
in the statement of profit and loss. Gain or Loss on account of re-measurements of other long-term
benefits are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they occur.

Employee share based payment

The number of options to be granted to each eligible employee is determined by dividing the Award
Value (amount equivalent to percentage of Annual Fix Pay) by the Fair Value of option provided.
Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others providing similar services are
measured at the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date. The fair value determined at
the grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments is expensed on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period as there are no Graded vesting plans. The Fair Value of option on the date of
each grant is determined by using Black Scholes model.

Taxes on Income
Taxes on income comprises of current taxes and deferred taxes.
Current tax is the amount of tax payable based on the taxable profit for the year as determined in

accordance with the applicable tax rates and the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 and other
applicable tax laws in the countries where the Company operates and generates taxable income.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases
used in the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using the balance sheet liability
method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. In
contrast, deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent that is probable that future taxable

S

profits will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilized.




JSW Bengal Steel Limited

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31 March, 2019

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they are related to items that
are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and
deferred tax are also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment except freehold land held for use in the production, supply or
administrative purposes are stated at cost of acquisition or construction less accumulated
depreciation and impairment, if any.

The cost of property, plant and equipment comprises its
a) purchase price net of any trade discounts and rebates, any import duties and other taxes (other
than those subsequently recoverable from the tax authorities),

b) any directly attributable expenditure on making the asset ready for its intended use, including
relevant borrowing costs for qualifying assets and

c) any expected costs of decommissioning,

Expenditure incurred after the property, plant and equipment have been put into operation, such as
repairs and maintenance, are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which the
costs are incurred. Major shut-down and overhaul expenditure is capitalized as the activities
undertaken improves the economic benefits expected to arise from the asset.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Assets in the course of construction are capitalized in the assets under construction account. At the
point when an asset is operating at management’s intended use, the cost of construction is
transferred to the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment and depreciation
commences.

For transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all its
property, plant and equipment recognized as of 1 April, 2015 (transition date) measured as per the
previous GAAP and used that carrying value as its deemed cost as of the transition date.

The Company reviews the residual value, useful lives and depreciation method annually and, if
expectations differ from previous estimates, the change is accounted for as a change in accounting
estimate on a prospective basis.

Depreciation

Depreciation commences when the assets are ready for their intended use. Depreciable amount for
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31°t March, 2019

Depreciation is recognized so as to write off the cost of assets (other than freehold land; properties
under construction and furniture and fixture of immoveable nature in leased premises) less their
residual values over their useful lives, using straight-line method. Freehold land is not depreciated
and furniture and fixture of immoveable nature in leased premises are depreciated over the lease
term.

Estimated useful lives of the property, plant and equipment are as follows:

Particulars Useful Life
| (in Years)
Building 30 -60
Plant and Equipment 3-15
Furniture and Fixtures 10
Vehicle 8
Office Equipment 5

The Company, based on technical assessment made by technical expert and management estimate,
depreciates certain items of building and plant and equipmentover estimated useful lives which are
different from the useful life prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. The
management believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of
the period over which the assets are likely to be used.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less
accumulated Amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Amortization is recognized on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and Amortization
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
being accounted for on a prospective basis

Software costs are included as Intangible assets where they are clearly linked to long term
economic benefits for the Company. They are measured initially at purchase costs and then
amortised on straight line basis over their estimated useful lives. Software is amortised over the
estimated useful life of 3 to 5 years.

For transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all its
intangible assets recognized as of 1% April, 2015 (transition date) measured as per the previous
GAAP and used that carrying value as its deemed cost as of the transition date.

Impairment of Assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and
intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Where it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Impairment loss is provided, if any, to the extent, the carrying amount of assets-exceed their

recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is higher of an asset’s fair value 1(';5_5'.-0_;()81.-}—1-&1_‘1:5% and its
NE/ NN
<

e/ 3\
N >
el ACLSZ




JSW Bengal Steel Limited

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31% March, 2019

value in use. Value in use is the present value of estimated future cash flows expected to arise from
the continuing use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life.

Investments in Subsidiaries

Investment in subsidiaries are carried at cost less impairment, if any. For transition to Ind AS the
Company has elected to continue with the previous GAAP carrying amount as their deemed cost.

Financial instrument

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value measured on initial recognition of financial assets or financial liability. The
transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and financial liabilities at
fair value through profit and loss are immediately recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

The Company initially recognises loans and advances, deposits, debt securities issues and
subordinated liabilities on the date on which they originate. All regular way purchases and sales of
financial assets are recognised on the trade date, which is the date on which the Company becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of financial instrument
and of allocating interest income or expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts future cash receipts or payments through the expected life of the
financial instrument, or where appropriate, a shorter period.

Financial assets
Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost if these financial assets are held within
a business model whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows
and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets measured at fair value

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial
assets are held within a business model whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows or to sell these financial assets and contractual terms of the financial asset
give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.




JSW Bengal Steel Limited

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31 March, 2019

The Company in respect of equity investments which are not held for trading has made an
irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value
of such equity instruments. Such an election is made by the Company on an instrument by
instrument basis at the time of initial recognition of such equity investments.

Financial asset not measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income
is carried at fair value through profit or loss.Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period, with any gains and losses arising on remeasurement recognized in
the statement of profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets

Loss allowance for expected credit losses is recognised for financial assets (debt instruments)
measured at amortised cost and fair value through other comprehensive income.

For financial assets whose credit risk has not significantly increased since initial recognition, loss
allowance equal to twelve months expected credit losses is recognised. Loss allowance equal to the
lifetime expected credit losses is recognised if the credit risk on the financial instruments has
significantly increased since initial recognition.

De-recognition of financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the asset expire, or it transfers the financial asset and substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity.

If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Company recognizes its retained interest in the assets
and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay.

Income/ dividend recognition on financial assets

Interest income from financial assets is recognised in profit or loss using effective interest rate
method, where applicable.

Dividend income from investments is recognized when the shareholder’s right to receive payment
has been established (provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably).

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified according to the
substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a tlth)pmlhablllty and
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31° March, 2019

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company
after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments are recorded at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

Trade and other payables are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs, and are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method where the time
value of money is significant.

De-recognition of financial liabilities

The Company derecognizes financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s obligations
are discharge, cancelled or they expire.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where
there 1s a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation, and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking in to account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation.If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are
discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the
liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognised as a finance cost.

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present
obligation that may, but probably will not require an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits or the amount of such obligation cannot be measured reliably. When there is a possible
obligation or a present obligation in respect of which likelihood of outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value.For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they

are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash management. P

Earnings per share
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31%t March, 2019

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to equity holder
of parent company (after deducting preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. For the purpose of calculating
diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders of
the parent company and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are

adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

V. Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

The accounting policies followed in preparation of these financial statements are consistent
with the previous year, except for adoption of the following standards and amendments.

The Company applied Ind AS 115 for the first time during the year ended 31 March 2019.
Several other amendments also apply for the first time in March 2019, but do not have an
impact on the financial statements of the Company. The Company has not early adopted any
standards or amendments that have been issued but are not yet effective.

Ind AS 115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Ind AS 115 was issued on 28 March 2018 and supersedes Ind AS 11 Construction Contracts
and Ind AS 18 Revenue.lt applies, with limited exceptions, to all revenue arising from
contracts with its customers. Since the Company has not started earning revenue from
contracts with customers, the application of Ind AS 115 does not have any impact the
Company’s Standalone Financial Statements.

Other changes to Ind AS

In addition to Ind AS 113, the following changes to Ind AS have also become applicable to
the Company. However, their adoption did not have any impact as there are no such
transactions or existing policies of the Company are already in compliance with the
amendments.

Amendment to Ind AS 20 Government grants related to non-monetary asset, including
consequential amendments to Ind AS 16 and Ind AS 38

Appendix B to Ind AS 21 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Considerations
Amendments to Ind AS 40 Transfers of Investment Property

Amendments to Ind AS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures — Clarification that
measuring investees at fair value through profit or loss is an investment-by-investment choice
Amendments to Ind AS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses
Amendment to Ind AS 112 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

Amendments to Ind AS Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA), vide its notification dated 11 October 2018,
amended Division 1I (Ind AS) of Schedule III to the Companies Act. The changes are
applicable for the financial ending 31 March 2019 and require the Company to make few
additional disclosures/ reclassify certain items in the financial statements. The Company has
made these changes in the relevant note. The application of these changes did not have
material impact on the financial statements.

V1. Use of Estimates and Judgements

In the course of applying the policies outlined in all notes, as disclosed above, the Company makes
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amount of assets and-tiabilitics that are
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not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and the associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and the underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and future periods
affected.

Uncertainty over availability of key raw materials

Consequent to deallocation of coal blocks and non-availability of long term iron ore
supplyarrangement, there are uncertainties in the implementation of the project. The Management
has evaluated the going concern assumptions in preparing the financial statements after considering
the Govt. Policy of allocation of coal blocks; establishing the long-term coal supply linkages with
the help of WBMDTC; support provided by Holding Company and alternate usage of the various
assets which are fully described in Note 23.11.

Classification of land lease

The Company hold 3,974 acres of land on 99 years lease for developing and operating steel plant.
The management has assessed that the Company has not obtained all significant risk and rewards of
ownership related to land. Hence, lease is treated as operating lease.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

Management reviews the useful lives of property, plant and equipment at least once a year. Such
lives are dependent upon an assessment of both the technical lives of the assets and also their likely
economic lives based on various internal and external factors including relative efficiency and
operating costs. Accordingly, depreciable lives are reviewed annually using the best information
available to the Management.

Fair value measurement of Financial Instruments

When the fair values of financials assets and financial liabilities recorded in the financial statements
cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using
valuation techniques which involve various judgements and assumptions.




‘Jdd se pazijejides uaaq aaey pue asn papusiul 1o} Apeas os|e

aJe s}esse papusjul Jayio ‘uonezifejdes xa|dwoD 1MUY YIAA ‘Tdd 0} dIAMD Yim woly xa|dwos) sy} payisselo-al sey §i ‘A|Bulp102dy "uononisuod Jo uogajdwos/sasn papuajul ul abueyo o} Junowejue}
abueyd sy} jey) passssse sey Auedwo) Sy "JSO9 UMO S} JE SPUN PaySIuL-WSs 3y} Jo awos 23ajdwod osie |[eys TOMSSH Jey} Bulpuelsiapun ue ypm pue jueld [s3)s s)l Joy xa|dwod sannbas Auedwod

syy Wi} 8y} |1} 8SN SSAUISNG JIay) Joj siseq Aelodwa) B uo xajdwoo Inyuy Jo o Buiya 1o} ‘lucq|es je Aujiae) Buipuub Juswso e dn jos sey yoiym ‘(TOAASK) PAYILIT JUSWSD AST Yim Juswasibe

ue ojut passjus Auedwoy ‘Apuanbasqng ‘ssaifold-ul-ylom-jejides se paiyissep ag 0} PanuRuad xa|dulod JNYUY YdIys 0} anp (LL €2 910U Jagal) pjoy uo ind sem 1a3lold 8y} aduls aJe)s paysiuiHes

Ul sem yaIum Jo ped xeidwo) Jnjuy se uamouy ‘saakojdwa sj1 0} uoliepoluwodde Buipiaold 1o) xa|dwaoo |eluspISas pauols Njnw pue asnoy }senb jo dn Bumies ul Juswysaaul apew pey Auedwo) sy

uonesijeyided dim2 - 310N

5S¢ 6¢S'T 811 P91 9¢ 669°8 6vT 818’8 Buiping
F=EY leaA
B8y3 Joy abieyd 3o0ig 19N uopealdaq )}o0jd Sso49  (ayj Jo0y abieyd | yoolg 19N uoRer3.daq )20|g SS049
uonzeraidag i uonepaidaqa paejnunooy sdejnoyped
8T0T ‘Yd1eW ISTE Je SY 610Z ‘Ydien ISTE 3@ Sy
(s2ej ul saadny)
:9ses) 6uizesado Japun uaalb sjasse Buimo||o) SSpn[ouUl 3A0qe 3yl
9P6°€Z 85E'v! 8856 Sl [24) L 8S¢ 8188 189 8107 Y3IBN ISLE IV
666'1Z 8ve'lL 152°0Z 14 862°L € (%34 6vzZ'9lL 289 6107 YaIe| ISLE IV
anjeA yoog 33N
006 = 006 [4 56 [43 8L 185 = 6L0T Y2Jep Isie v
v - |22 4 ol St 9€ S = slesodsig
182 - 182 € SE I 98 951 - 1eak ay; Joy ob1ey]
£69 5 £69 3 9. 14 vEL 9t = 810 YaIelyIsig v
v = r B = = - - - s|esodsiq
[4%4 - [4%4 14 0z 4 6¢ 145 - Jeak ay; Jof abiey
S8Y . S8Y 3 9§ k44 56 162 = 2102 [udy 351 IV
uonerdaidag pajenuNIdIY
668°22 8ve’L 159°'12 9 £6€'L S€ v69° 9£8'9l 189 610Z YyoIepyisie v
(s8z’cl) [GI) (S21) (o1) (22) (8L) (ev) (22) = suaugsnipy /siesodsiq
S¥S'LL = SPS'LL N 102'tL - S¥Z'C 660'8 - suonippy
6£9v2 8SE'vL 182°0L 9l (134 €S Z6¥ v18's 189 810Z YdJep ISLE IV
G - S S - = - = - sjesodsiq
€ET ege L = o = L - - suonippy
Liv've 9zh'vl $8Z°01 4 61¢ £§ 434 vig's 189 2107 |udy is) Iy
103
ssasboid sainxi4 Juswdinb3y
12301 ug yiom (eyiden eyo1 sajaIyan pue ainpwng juswdinby sayyo  puejueld sbuipjing pueT pjoy aaig stepnaed

(sae] ul saadny)

juswidinb3g pue jueld ‘Apadold -¢ ajoN

6L0Z Y2Iepy 1S|£ Papua teak ayj 10y pue Je Se SJUaWIIe)s [BIDUBUY BY)} O] S3JON

G3LINIT 133LS TvON3Ia MSr




JSW BENGAL STEEL LIMITED

Notes to the financlal statements as at and for the year ended 31st March 2019

Note 4 Intanglble Assets

(Rupees In lacs)

Intanglble asset

Particulars (Softwares)

l. Cost

At 1st Aprll 2017 14
Additions .
Disposals .
At 31st March 2018 14
Additlons 5
Disposals -
At 31st March 2019 14
Amortisation

Balance as at 1st April , 2017 1
Amortisation 2
Balance as at 1st Aprll, 2018 13
Disposals 13
Amortisation 1
At 31st March 2019 14

Net Book Value

At 31st March 2019
At 31st March 2018




JSW BENGAL STEEL LIMITED

Notes to the financlal statements as at and for the year ended 31st March 2019

Note 6: Non-current Investments

As at 31st March 2019

As at 31st March 2018

Particulars Number of sh N fsh
umber of shares (Rupees In lacs) umber of shares {Rupees in lacs)
Investments In unguoted Equity Instruments of Subsldiarles (
At cost unless stated otherwise)
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid in JSW Natural Resources
India Limited 10,73,30,000 10,733 10,70,60,000 10,706
Eitmlttgdshares of Rs. 10 each fuly paid in JSW Energy (Bengal) 2.98,60,000 2,986 2,84,60,000 2,946
Total 13,719 13,652
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments, carried at cost 13,719 13,652
Note 6: Other financlal assets (R In lacs)
As at 31st March 2019 As at 31st March 2018
Particulars Current Non-Current Current Non-Current
Unsecured considered good,unless otherwise stated
Financial assets at amortised cost
Security deposits (Refer Note below) - B4 - 384
Recoverable from related parties ( Refer Note 23.04) 65 - 108 -
Interest accrued on bank deposits 3 - 12 -
Total 68 84 120 384

Note

During the year, the Company has got a refund of Rs 300 lacs from West Bengal Mineral Development and Trading Corporation Limited (WBMDTCL),
which was paid under sole and exclusive long term Coal Supply Agreement on March 31, 2010 for supply of coal from the Kulti and Sitarampur coal blocks.




JSW BENGAL STEEL LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31st March 2019

Note 7: Other assets

(Rupees In lacs)

As at 31st March 2019 As at 31st March 2018
Partlculars
Current Non-Current Current Non-Current
Unsecured considered good,unless otherwise stated
Capital advances [Refer Note below] - 1,123 - 1,130
Prepaid expenses
- Lease rental* 100 8,773 83 7.371
- Others 6 - 4 -
Balance with government authorities - 145 - 127
Other advances (includes suppliers etc.) 1 - 4 -
Total 107 10,041 91 8,628
Note

Includes Rs.699 lacs (P.Y - Rs 699 lacs) paid in earlier year to West Bengal Industrial Development Corporation Limited, the acquiring body, towards
acquisition of Patta and Private land aggregating 189.6274 acres under Land Acquisition Act, 1894. Although the above mentioned area of land has been

handed over to the company, the lease deed for the same is yet to be executed in favour of the Company.

Further an advance of Rs 369 lacs (P.Y - Rs 369 lacs) paid to Mukherjee Farms Private Limited in respect of Mining Land situated at Gangotia, District.-
Burdawan. The said advance was given to Mukherjee Farms Private Limited on behalf of JSW Natural Resource India Limited (NRIL). As informed by the
Company a capital commitment of Rs 207 lacs (net of advance Rs 88 tacs) is appearing in the Books of NRIL pertaining to such land

*Non current prepaid expenses represents prepayments in respect of 3,974 acres of land on 99 years lease taken under arrangements in the nature of
operating leases, being amortised over the period of lease, The management has assessed that the Company has not obtained all significant risk and

rewards of ownership related to land. Hence, lease is treated as operating lease.

Note 8: Current Investments (at fair value through Profit and Loss Accouiit)

{Rupees |n lacs)

Particul As at 31st March As at 31st March
arteulars 2019 2018
Investment in Mutual Fund * 334 .
Total 334 =

*The aggregate market value of HDFC Liquid Fund- Growth consists of 9135.3 units at NAV of Rs 3,660.30/- each as at March 31, 2019. (2018- NIL)

Note 9: Cash and cash equivalents

(Rupees in lacs)

Particulars As at 31st March

As at 31st March

2019 2018
Balances with bank
- On current accounts 32 62
Cash on hand 1 1
Total a3 63
Note 10: Other Bank Balances (Rupees in lacs)
Particulars As at 31st March As at 31st March
2019 2018
Balances with bank
in deposit account (Refer Note below) 39 27
Total 39 27

Note:

Balances with banks in deposit account represents fixed deposits which have an original maturity of less than 12 months from the

balance sheet date.
Note 11 Curent tax assets (net)

(Rupees in lacs)

Particulars As at 31st March As at 31st March
2019 2018
Advance tax 3! -
Total 3 A




JSW BENGAL STEEL LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31st March 2019

Note 12 - Equity Share capital

Particulars

As at 31st March 2019

As at 31st

March, 2018

No. of Shares

| (Rupees In lacs}

No. of Shares

(Rupees In lacs)

Authorised Share Capital

Equily Shares of Rs. 10 each

Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid up
Equily Shares of Rs. 10 each

1,00,00,00,000 |

1,00,000 |

1.00,00,00,000

1,00,000

45,82,05,000

| 45,821 |

45,39,15,000 |

45,392

Noles:-
I. Reconciliation of equity shares at the bieginning and at the end of the yiar :

Particulars No. of Shares Equlty share capital

{No.) (Rupees In lacs)

Balance as at 1sl April, 2017 44,89,15,000 44,892
Add: Issue of shares during the period 50,00,000 500
Balance as at 31st March, 2018 45,39,15,000 45,392
Add: Issue of shares during the period 42,90,000 429
At 31st March 2019 45,82,05,000 45,821 |

Il. TermsiRights attached to equity shares

The Company has one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share, Each Shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held. In the event of

liquidalion, the equity shareholders are eligible 1o receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their
shareholding.The dividend if proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in case

of interim dividend.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive residual assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential
amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by each shareholder.

I1l. Details of shares held by the holding company:

Particulars Number of shares (Rupees In lacs)
As at 31st March 2019 45,22,05,000 45,221
JSW Steel Limited
As at 31st March, 2018
JSW Steel Limiled 44,79,15,000 44,792
IV. Details of shares held by each shareholder holding more than §% shares :
As at 31st March 2019 As at 31st March, 2018
Class of shares / Name of shareholder Number of shares % holding Number of shares held % holding
held
JSW Steel Limited, the holding company 45,22,05,000 98.69 44,79,15,000 98.68




JSW BENGAL STEEL LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31st March 2019

Note 13 Other Equity

(Rupees in lacs)

Particulars As at e

31st March 2019 31st March,2018
General Reserve (Refer Note a) 50 50
Retained Earnings (Refer Note b) (2,911) (2,108)
Share Warrants {(Refer Note ¢) 1,398 1,398
Total (1,463) (660)
a) General Reserve (Rupees in lacs)

Year ended Year ended

31st March 2019 31st March,2018
Balance at the beginning of the year 50 50
Balance at the end of the year 50 50

(General reserve mainly represents appropriation from the statement of profit and loss and can be utilised in accordance with the

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013)

b) Retained Earnings

(Rupees in lacs)

Year ended Year ended
31st March 2019 31st March,2018
Balance at the beginning of the year (2,108) (1,365)
Total comprehensive Income for the year (803) (743)
Balance at the end of the year (2,911) (2,108)
Retained earnings represent the cumulative profit / (loss) of the Company and effects of re-measurement of defined benefit obligations

and can be utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013)

c) Share Warrants

(Rupees in lacs)

Year ended Year ended
31st March 2019 31st March,2018
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,398 1,398
Balance at the end of the year 1,398 1,398

Share warrants represent the Company's agreement to give free Equity shares with voting and dividend rights of the Company, equivalent to the
amount of cash compensation paid for acquisition of private (Rayati) Land and Patta Land by way of a goodwill gesture so as to compensate the land
losers for their loss of livelihood and ensuring their co-operation to the successful implementation of the proposed steel plant of the Company.
Accordingly, 13,981,008 warrants (convertible into equity shares with voting rights on the date of achieving the commercial operation by JSW Bengal
Steel Limited in the 1st phase or the date of IPO, whichever is earlier) of Rs.10 each aggregating Rs.1398 lacs has been allotted on preferential basis
to JSW Bengal Steel Trust. The warrants holder will not be entitled for any dividend / voting rights in the Companyﬂﬁtﬂl issue of shares in lieu of
warrants, T




JSW BENGAL STEEL LIMITED

Notes to the financlal statements as at and for the year ended 31st March 2019

Note 14 Provisions

{Rupees in lacs)

Particulars

As at 31st March 2019

As at 31st March 2018

Provision for employee benefits:
Provision for compensated absences
Provision for gratuity ( Refer Note 23.09)

Total

Note 15 Other liahilities

Current Non-Current Current Non-Current
17 - 42 -
1 17 56 14
18 17 98 14

[Rupees in lacs)

Particulars

As at 31st March 2019

As at 31st March 2018

Advance received from related party* ( Refer Note
23.04)
Statutory Liabilities

Total

Current Non-Current Current Non-Current
- 1,281 - 1,281
5 - 15 -
5 1,281 15 1,281

* The Company had received above advance from JSW Energy Bengal Limited towards development of common facilities and the same will be

adjusted when the Company's project is commissioned.

Note 16 Trade payables

(Rupees In lacs)

Particulars

As at 31st March 2019

As at 31st March
2018

Trade Payables
(A) Total outstanding dues of small enterprises and
micro enterprises
(B) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than
small enterprises and micro enterprises
Total

65

68

65

68

Note 17 Other Financial Liabilities-current

(Rupees in lacs)

As at 31st March

Particulars As at 31st March 2019 2018
Retention Money for Capital Project 95 101
Payables for Capital Projects 108 211
Payable to related party ( Refer Note 23.04) 192 57
Payable to Employees 41 3
Security Deposits from related party (Refer Note 250 250
23.04)
Total 683 622

Note 18 Current tax liabilities(net)

(Rupess In lacs)

Particulars

As at 31st March
2019

As at 31st March
2018

Income Tax pavable

Total




JSW BENGAL STEEL LIMITED
Notes to the flnancial statements as at and for the year ended 31st March 2019

Note 19 Other Income

(Rupeaos In lacs)

Year ended 31st March

Year ended 31st March

Particulars 2019 2018
Interest Income on fixed deposits 2 6
Net gain arising on disposal of financial assets mandatorily measured at fair value through 1
profit or loss -
Rental income 124 111
Fair value gain on financial instruments through profit and loss 9 £
Total 135 118
Note 20 Employee benefits expense {Ruj in lacs)
Year ended 31st March Year ended 31st March
Particulars 2019 2018
Salaries,wages and bonus 164 243
Contribution to provident fund 8 13
Gratuity expenses i 7
Share based payments to employees 108 31
Staff welfare expenses 8 8
Total 295 302
Note 21 Other expenses {Rupens In lacs)
Particulars Year end§%1391 st March Year end;g1381 st March
Rent 174 165
Loss on disposal of property,plant and equipment (net) 93 *
Auditors Remuneration (Refer Note below) 12 12
Communication 5 5
CWIP Written off 3s -
Printing and stationery 1 2
Directors sitting fees 3 3
Office expenses 14 11
Travelling and conveyance 17 26
Legal and professional expenses 10 8
Security charges 36 53
Guest house expenses 6 5
Insurance (net of claims received) 6 22
Advances written off - 3
Other Miscellaneous Expenses 3 2
Total 418 37
Note:- (Rupees In lacs)
Auditors remuneration comprises {net of service tax)
As Auditors 12 12
Reimbursement of expenses - :
12 12

* Amount is below the rounding off norm adopted by the Company.




JSW BENGAL STEEL LIMITED
Notes to the financlal statements as at and for the year ended 31st March 2019

Note 22
A reconcillatlon of the income tax provision to the amount computed by applying the statutory Income tax réte to
the income before Income taxes Is summarized below:

For the year For the year
Partlculars ended 31st March ended 31st March
2019 2018

Loss before tax (860) (7186)
Corporate Tax rates in India 26.0% 34.608%
Computed expected tax expenses -
Add:-
Effect of tax on Income from House property and
Income from other sources which are separately 22 26
taxable as per Income Tax Act
Others 1

23 26
AdJustments recognised In the current year in relation 81
to the current tax of prior years @1
Total Income tax expenses recognised in Statement 58 26
of Profit and loss (58)

Note:
As the Company has not yet commenced operation, there were no unused tax losses and further, on a prudent
basls, no deferred tax asset on other temporary dlfferences has been recognised by the Company.

The tax rate used for the year 2018-18 Is the corporate tax rate of 28,00% (256% + surcharge @ 0% and education
cess @ 4%) payable on taxable profits under the Income Tax Act, 1961. [PY -34.608% ( 30% +12% + 3%)]

* Amount Is below the rounding off norm adopted by the Company.




JSW BENGAL STEEL LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31st March 2019

Note 23: Other Notes

23.01.(i)Capital Risk Management

The company is managing its capilal requirement primarily through investment by Holding company. The capital structure of lhe company consists of
Equity Share Capital of and Other Equily (i.e. General Reserve, Retained Eamings etc.) of the company.The company is not subject to any exiernally
imposed capital requirements.

23,01(ii) Credit risk management
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on ils contractual abligations resulting in financial loss to (he company. Credit risk

encompasses of both,the direct risk of defaull and the risk of deterioration of credit worthiness as well as concentration risks .The Company has
adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparlies and obtaining sufficient collateral,where appropritate, as a means of mitigating the
risk of financial loss from defaults. Presently, the Company's operation does not subject to any credit risk.

Note 23.01 (iii)
Category of Financial Instruments

The carrying value and fair value of financial inslruments by categories are as follows:-
(Rupees in Lacs)

31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
Particulars
Carrying Falr value Carrylng Fair value
value value

Financial assets, measured at amortised cost
Non current Assets

() Investments 13,719 13,719 13,652 13,652

(i) Olher financial assels 84 84 384 384
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 33 33 63 63
Other bank balances 39 39 27 27
Other financial assels 68 67 120 120
Total financial assets measured at amortised 13,942 13,942 14,246 14,246
cost
Financial assets, measured al Fair Value through
Profit and Loss
Investment in Mutual Fund 334 334 - -
Total financial assets measured at amortised 334 334 - -
cost
Financial liabilities, measured al amorlised cosl
Trade payables 65 65 68 68
Other financial liabilities 683 683 622 622
Total financial llabilltles, measured at 748 748 690 690
amortlsed cost

The Carrying amounls of Trade receivables, Trade payables, Cash and Cash Equivalenls, olher bank balances, other current financial assets and

liabililies are considered as the same as their fair values, due lo their shorl term nalure.

Fair Value Hierarchy
{Rupaes in lncs)
Particulars 31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial assels, measured at amortised cost
Non current Assels
(i) Other financial assets - - 84 = - 384

Currenl Assets
Investments, carried at cosls 334 - = - = =

Total 334 - 84 - - 384




Notes : The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and /or disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation techniques :
Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 hierarchy includes the fair value of financial inslruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, over-the counter derivatives) and
the fair value is delermined using valuation technigues which maximise the use of observable markel data and rely as lillle as possible on entity-
specific estimates, If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the inslrument is included in leve! 2,

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market dala, the instrument is included in level 3.

There are no transfers between level 1 and 2 during lhe year, The Company's policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out of fair value
hierarchy levels as at lhe end of lhe reporting period.

23,02 Liquldity risk

The company's principal sources of liquidily are cash and cash equivalents which are primarily in the form of Equity Contribution from the Holding
Company. The Company has no outstanding bank borrowings. The company believes that the funding by Holding Company is sufficient lo meet its
current requirements and in case of any requirement, the same witl be supported in the form of capital infusion by the Holding Company. Accordingly,
no liquidity risk is perceived

The contractual maturities of financial liabilities are of less than 1 and year and lhe same are mentioned in the table below:-

{Rupoes In lacs)

Particulars 31st March, | 31st March,
2019 2018
Trade payables 65 68
Other financial liabilities 683 622
748 690

23.03 - Contingent liabllities and commitments (to the extent not provided for)

{Rupees in lacs)

As at As at
Particulars 31st March 31st
2019 March,2018

Commitments
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be 509 652
executed on capital account and not provided for
(nel of advances)

Note 23.04
Related Party Disclosures
(a) List of Related Parties:
Parlies wilh whom lhe Company has entered into transactions during th:

1. Holding Company:
JSW Steel Limited

2. Subslidiarles:
JSW Natural Resources India Limited
JSW Energy (Bengal) Limited
JSW Natural Resources Bengal Limited [Wholly owned subsidiary of JSW Energy (Bengal) Limited]

3. Enterprise under common control:
JSW Cement Ltd.

4, Key Management Personnel:

Mr. Pumendu Pandey Director (From January 15, 2019)
Mr. Alok Mehrotra Director (Tifl July 31, 2018)

Mr. Partha Bose CFO

Ms. Priyanka Ramesh Shelly Company Secretary

Mr. Biswadip Gupta Director

Mr. Jugal Kishore Tandon Director

Ms. Nayanlara Palchoudari Director

Mr. Ashok Kumar Basu Director

Mr. Romit Mutsuddi Director

Mr. S. Radhakrishnan Director




(Rupees In lacs)

Holdin Enterprise
Com ag Subsidlaries under common
pany control Key
Particulars JSW Steel | JSW Energy | JSW Natural | JSW Natural JSW Cement | management
Limited (Bengal) Resources Resources Ltd. personnel
Limited India Limited | Bengal Limited
(b) Transactions with Related Parties
{1) Equity contribution to the Company 429 - = = = =
(500) ] ) () ) )
{ii} Investments made - 40 27 - - =
&) (31) (22) ) () )
(iii) Recovery of Expenses incurred by us on
their behalf 15 6 39 50 27 -
(26) (5) (35) (42) ) ()
(iv) Deposits received / refunded back - - - = - =
) (500) ) ) ) )
(v) Reimbursement of Expenses incurred on
our behalf by 127 - - - a5 .
(56) & ) ) (154) ()
{vi) Employee Stock Option given - - - - 118
c = = = (22)
(vii) Rent income - - - - 124 -
) @) ) ) (111) ()
(viii) Repayment of advances - - - - 163 -
0 ) ) ) (481) )
(ix) Remuneration of Key Management
Personnel
[Refer Note below]
Mr, Purnendu Pandey - - - = E 8
) 3 3 ) B )
Mr.Alok Mehrotra - - - - - 156
() ) B ) ) (179)
Mr.Partha Bose = = = - - 20
) ) ) ) (=) (18)
Ms Privanka Ramesh Shetty - - - = - 13
5) 3} 0 0 0 Q
(x) Sitting Fees of Key Management Personnel
[Refer Note below]
Mr.Alok Mehrotra = = a - Y .
(-) (-) (-) (=) (-) )
Mr. Jugal Kishore Tandon - - - = - 1
(=) (=) (=) ) (=) (1)
Ms. Nayantara Palchoudari - = s = R .
) ) () ) ) )
Mr. Ashok Kumar Basu = - - = = 1
3] 5] ) ) () ()
Mr. Romil Multsuddi - - - - - 1
) ) ) ) ) )
Mr. S. Radhakrishnan - . - - N .
3 3 B 3] ) )




(c ) Nature of balances with related parties
and closing balances as at period ended

(i) Recoverable

At 31st March 2018 43 - - - 21 -

As at 31sl March, 2018 (49) (5) (35) (42) (18) (-)
(ii) Payable

At 31st March 2019 176 1,281 - - 266 -

As al 31st March, 2018 (57) (1,281) (-) {-) (250) (=)
(iii) Investment in Equity Shares

At 31st March 2019 - - 10,733 2,986 - -

As at 31st March. 2018 (-} (-) (10,706) (2.946) {-) (-)

Figures in bracket relate to previous year

* Amount is below lhe rounding off norm adopted by the Company.

Note:
The remuneration of Key Management Personnel during the year was as follows:-
{Rupees In lacs)

Yearended Year ended
31st March, 31st March,

2019 2018
Short-lerm employee benefits 197 197
Silting Fees 3 2
200 199

As the fulura Ira\IJll_ityr for gratully and leave is provided on an acluarial basis for lhe Company as a whole, the amount pertaining to key management

personnel is not ascertainable and therefore not included above.

Note 23.05

Operating Lease

As a Lessor

The company has entered into Lease agreements for renting office premises and residential accomodation. All operating lease contracts are for 36
months, The lessee doesn't have an option to purchase the properly at the expiry of the lease period. The rental income earned by lhe company from
the leased property has reporied as "Rental Income" in Note no. 19.

As a Lessee

The company has entered inlo lease agreemenl with Government of West Bengal for obtaining the lease hold land with lease term of 89 years.The
company doesn't have an option 1o purchase the leased land at the expiry of leased period. The aggregate lease rentals are charged as Rent and
debited to Statement of Profit and Loss in Note 19 of the Financial Statements. The initial lease term was 99 years with a further renewable of 99
years on lhe same lerms & conditions and to such other terms & conditions as the State Government may from time-to-time consider necessary.

Note 23.06

MSME Outstanding

Based on and to the exlent of information oblained from suppliers regarding lheir slatus as Micro,Small or Medium Enterprises under Micro,Small and
Medium Enterprises Development Act,2006, there are no Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises, to whom the Company owes dues, which are
outstanding for more than 45 days during the year.




Note 23,07

Segment Reporting

The Company’s activities during the year revolved around setting up of the Project . Considering lhe nature of Company's business and operations,
there are no separate reporiable segments in accordance with lhe requirements of Ind AS 108.

Details of non-current assets (property, plant and equipment, capital work-In-progress and other Intangible assets) based on geographical
area are as below:

(Rupees In lncs)

Particulars Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2019 |March 31, 2018
India 21,999 23,947
Note 23.08

Earnings Per Share
(Rupeas in lacs)
For the year | For year ended

Particulars ended 31st 31st March
March 2019 2018

Profitf{Loss) attributable lo Eguily shareholders and (A) (802) (741)

Reconciliation hetween weighted average number of shares used for

Weighted avarage number of equity shares lor Basic Eamings per share (B) 4 570 4,512

Effect of dilution:

Acld= Share Warrants 140 140

Weighted average number of equity shares adjusted for the effect of dilution for

calculation of diluted eamings per share (G ) 4710 4.652

Par value per share (Rupees) 10 10

Earmings per share of Rs, 10 each

Basic (A/B) [In Rupees] (0.18) (0.16)

Diluted (AIC) [In Rupees] * (0.18) (0.16)

* the company has Incurred losses in the current year and previous year, hence the dlluted EPS has been
kept as same as Basic EPS since the same is antldijutive In nature

Note 23.09
Employee Benefit Related Disclosure and ESOP

Employee Benefit Plans

Defined Contribution Plans
The Company conlribules lo Provident Fund which is a defined contribution plan. Under the Scheme, the Company is required to a specified
percentage of payroll costs 1o fund the benefits. The contributions payable to the plan by the Company are at lhe rate specifed in the rules of the
Scheme. The particular of such contribulions are stated as below:-

(Rupees in lacs)

For the year

For the year

Particulars ended 34st ended 31st
March 2012 March 2018
Contribulion to Provident Fund 8 13

(recognised under "Contribution to Provident Fund." in Note 20)

8 13

Defined Benefit Plans

The Company offers Gratuity as the employee benefit scheme to its employee and the Gratuity is payable as per under Gratuily Act 1972, The

Graluily scheme of the Company is unfunded.

a) Since the Graluily scheme is unfunded, the Company is not contributing to any fund and lherefore there is no exposure to Investment Risk and
Inlerest rate risk.

Risk
Longevity Risk ‘The present value of scheme liability is calculated by reference to the best
eslimate of the mortality plan participants both during and after their employment.
An increase in life expectancy of the scheme participants will increase the
scheme's liabilily.
Salary Risk The present value of defined benefit liability is calculated by reference to the future

salary of plan participants. Salary escalation and attrition rate are considered as

projecied by the company in line with industry practice considering promotion and
demand & supply of the employees. As such, an increase in the salary of the plan
participants will increase the plan's liability.




b) The principal assumptions used for the purpose of the actuarial valuations were as follows:

31st March,| 31st March,
Particulars 2019 2018

Discount Rate 7.76% 7.56%
Expected Rate of salry increase 6.00% 6.00%
Expected Rate of employee turnover 2.00% 2.00%
Mortality rate during the Employeement Indian Indian assured

assured Lives Mortality

Lives (2006-08)

Mortality

(2006-08)
Mortaiity rate after Employment N.A N.A

c) Expenses recognised in the statement of Profil and loss
(Rupees In lacs)
Year ended | Year ended

Particulars 31st March | 31st March
2019 2018
Currenl service cosl 1 2
Past service cost - -
Net interest cost 6 5
Gain/(Losses) on curlailmeni and seltlements - -
Total Grautulty Expense 7 7

d) Expenses recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)
(Rupees In lacs)
Yearended | Year ended
Partlculars 31st March 31st March
2019 2018

Remeasurements of the net deflned beneflt
liabllity

Actuarial Losses on Obligations - due to change
in Financial Assumptions

Actuarial Losses on Obligations - due to

Experience Adjustments 1 2
Actuarial Losses on Obligations - due to

Demographic Adjustments : :
Net Expense for the year recognised in OCI 1 2

e) Amounl recognised in the Balance Shest
(Rupees in lacs)

As at March| As at March

31,2019 31, 2018
Present value of Defined Benefit Obligalion at the
17 69
end of the year
Fair value of plan assels at the end of the year - -
Net Llablllity Recognised In the balance sheet 17 69

f) Change in Defined Benefit Obligations during the year
{Rupees in lacs)

As at March| As at March

31, 2019 31,2018
Present value of obligation at the beginning of the 69 62
year
Current service cost 1 2
Interest cost 5 5
Remeasurements - Actuarial losses 1 2

Benefit Paid Directly by the Employer -59 -2

Present value of obligation at the end of the
vear

17 69




g) Sensilivily Analysis

Significanl acluarial assumptions for the determination of the defined obligation are discount rate, expecled salary increase and mortality. The
sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occuring at the end of
reporting period while holding all olher assumptins constant.

(Rupees In lacs)

As at March | As at March 31,
31, 2018 2018
Projected benefit Obligation on Current 17 69
Assumptions
Effect of +1% change in Rate of Discounting on 0 )
Present Value of obligation
Effect of -1% change in Rate of Discounting on 1 1

Present Value of obligation

Effect of +1% change in Salary increase 1 1

Effect of -1% change in Salary increase (1) 1)
Effect of +1% change in Employee tumover 0 0
Effect of -1% change in Employee turnover (0) (0)

The sensitivity analysis have been delermined based on reasonably possible changes of the respeclive assumptions occurring at the end of the
reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant. The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual
change in the projected benefit obligation as it is unlikely thal the change in assumplions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the
assumptions may be correlated.

Furthermore, in presenting lhe above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the projected benefil obligation has been calculated using the projecled
unit credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same method as applied in calculating lhe projected benefit obligation as recognised

in he balance sheet. There was no change in the methods and assumplions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior years,
h) Maturity profile of defined benefit obligations:-

Projetced benefits payable in future years from the date of reporting:-
(Rupees In lacs)

1st following year 0
Subsequenl 2 - 5 years 11
Subsequent 6 - 10 years 7
Subsequent 11 years and above 12

23.10 Employees Stock Option Plan

ESOP SCHEME 2016 {1st Grant):
The eligible company employees (in the L-16 grade and above -AVP and above) have been granted Slock Oplions pursuant lo the ESOP Plan

2016 by its Holding Company JSW Sleel Limited from JSWSL EMPLOYEES STOCK OWNERSHIP PLAN 2016 ("ESOP Plan®) formulated by the
Holding Company JSW Steel Ltd (JSL) for permanent employees of lhe company and ils subsidiaries. The valuation has been done based on the
Black Scholes model by JSW Sleel Limited, the Holding Company which works out to Rs. 103.65, the exercise price for the 1st Grant. The fair value
of the options would be amortised in the books of accounts over the vesling period.

The delails of an employee share based payments plan operaled through a irust for ESOP 2016 are as follows (Refer Nole below):-

Option series

Optlons
granted

Options
vested

Grant date

Vesting period

Exerclse price
(Rupees)

Falr value at
grant date
(Rupees)

Method of
settlement

1st Grant - 17th May, 2016

7,308

Nil

17th May,
2016

17th May, 2016
til 31st March,
20189 (for 50% of
the grant) and
17th May, 2016
to 31st March,
2020 (for,
remaining 50%
of the grant)

103.65

674.79

Equily




ESOP SCHEME 2016: (2nd Grant)

The eligible company employees ( in the L-16 grade and above -AVP and above) have been granted Stock Options pursuani to the ESOP Plan
2016 by its Holding Company JSW Stee! Limited from JSWSL EMPLOYEES STOCK OWNERSHIP PLAN 2016 (“ESOP Plan") formulated by the
Holding Company JSW Steel Lid (JSL) for permanent employees of the company and its subsidiaries. The valuation has been done based on the
Black Scholes model by JSW Steel Limited, the Holding Company which works out to Rs.161.36 .the exercise price for the 2nd Grant. The fair value
of the options would be amortised in the books of accounts over the vesting period.
The detalls of an employee share based payments plan pparated (hrough a trust for ESOP 2016 are as follows (Refer Nole belaw)-

. . Fair value at
Option series Optlons Options Grant date | Vesting period Exercise price grant date Mgthodio
granted vested {Rupees) settlement
(Rupees)
16th May, 2017
till 31sl March,
2020 (for 50% of
the grant) and
16th May, 2017
2nd Granl - 16th May 2017 47,067 NIL 16th May 2017|to  31sl March, 161.36 104.04 Equity

2021 (for
remaining 50%
of the grant)

ESOP SCHEME 2016: (3rd Grant)

The eligible company employees (in the L-16 grade and above -AVP and above) have been granted Slock Options pursuant to the ESOP Plan 2016 by its
Holding Company JSW Sleel Limited from JSWSL EMPLOYEES STOCK OWNERSHIP PLAN 2016 (“ESOP Plan") formulated by the Holding Company JSW
Steel Ltd (JSL) for permanenl employees of the company and its subsidiaries. The valuation has heen done based on the Black Scholes model by JSW Steel
Limited, lhe Holding Company which works out 1o Rs.263.24 the exercise price for the 3rd Grant. The fair value of lhe options would be amortised in the books of

accounls over the vesting period.

The details of an employes share based payments plan operated through a lrust for ESOP 2016 are as follows (Refer Nole balow):-

. Falr value at
Option series g&t:_l::: C‘)Iz 2:::: Grantdate |Vesting period Exz;t:.]l::e[.;r)lce grant date ;tha:ttlr:r)r?e(:\ft
(Rupees)
16th May, 2017
til 31st March,
2020 (for 50% of
the grant) and
16th May, 2017
2nd Grant - 16lh May 2017 30,059 NIL 16th May 2017|to 31st March, 161.36 167.14 Equity

2021 (for
remaining 50%
of the grant)




The Oulslanding posilion as on 31st March, 2019 is summarized below (Refer Note below):

ESOP 2016 | ESOP 2016 ESOP 2016
1st Grant (L-| 2nd Grant (L- | 3rd Grant (L-
Particulars 16 and 16 and above |16 and above
above Grade) Grade)
Grade)
Dale of grant 17-May-16 16-May-17 15-May-18
Outstanding as on 01st April, 2018 7.308 47,067 0
Granted During the period - - 30,059
Forfeiled during the period - - -
Transfer-out arising from transfer of employees to
group companies B B -
Exercised during the period - - 0
Outstanding as on 31sl March,2019 7,308 47,067 30,068
17th  May,|16th May, 2017|15th May,
2016 lill 31st|till 31st March,[2018 till 31sl
March, 2019|2020 (for 50%|March, 2021
{for 50% ofjof Ihe grant)|(for 50% of lhe
the grant)|and 18th May,|grant} and 15th
and 17th|2017 to 31si|May, 2018 to
Vesling Period May, 2016 to|March, 2021|31st  March,
31st March,|(for remaining|2022 (for
2020 (for|560% of the|remaining 50%
remaining grant) of the grant)
50% of the
grant)
Exercise Price (Rupees) 103.65 161.36 263,24
Weighted Average exercise price of the share
options outstanding at the end of the year 103.65 161.36 263.24
(Rupees)

Expenses arising from employee's share-based payment plans - Rs.107.76 lacs recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss under Nole 19 [31sl
March, 2018 - Rs. 30.61 lacs |.

Note:-

Pursuant to the approval of lhe members accorded on 17 December 2016 by way of a Poslal ballot, the Equily Shares of the Holding Company JSW
Steel Ltd having a face value of Rs. 10/~ (Rupees Ten only) each were sub-divided into 10 (Ten) Equity Shares having a face value of Re. 1/- (Rupee
One only) each. Accordingly the shares under bolh the ESOP Schemes, have been subdivided for the purpose of disclosure in lhe aforesaid nole.
The weighled average exercise price and fair value at grant date, as disclosed in the Note above, have also been prorated accordingly in ralio of 10:1
for both the above ESOP Schemes.

Note 23.11

Status of the Project

In 2007, the Company (together wilh its subsidiaries) proposed to set up a 10 million tons per annum integrated steel plant and 1,660 MW captive
power plant at Salboni of dislricl Paschim Medinipur in West Bengal [collectively referred to as Integrated Steel Project (ISP / Project)]. The Company
entered into a Development Agreement with lhe Government of West Bengal and West Bengal Mineral Development Corporation (¥BMDTC) and
accordingly Government of West Bengal agreed to provide necessary assistance and cooperation for implementation of the project, including
arrangemenl and supply of resources. In the first phase, the Company has planned to selup a 3 million ton per annum integrated steel plant and a 300
MW caplive power plant. The Govemment of Wesl Bengal allocated 4,102 acres of land on a long lerm lease to the Company and lhree coal blocks
were identified by WBMDTC for the Project. In September 2014, the Hon’ble Supreme Court deallocated all coal mines including coal block allocated
to WBMDTC to be used for Company’s iSP. However, the Development Agreement with the Government of West Bengal continues 1o be valid.

In February 2016, the Cabinet Commitiee on Economic Affairs, approved the allocationsflinkages of coal blocks for non-regulated sector including
Steel, However, no auctions have been scheduled till date for coal linkages to be proposed for greenfield projects in steel sector. Besides, the
Government has also not yet finalised the rules and regulations related to the participation of companies for securing iron ore for greenfield projects,
the Company has not been able lo secure any mining rights for sourcing iron ore.

In view of the above, lhe Project has been put on hold till such time the Company is able lo secure coal and iron ore linkages required for the Project.
These evenls and conditions indicate lhat a material uncertainty exisl relating to allocation of coal and iron ore mines to lhe Company and its
consequential impact on the implementlalion of the Project. However, The Company is committed towards implementing the Project wilh supporl of
Cenlral and State Governments and believes thal il will be able to secure coal and iron ore linkages in due course of time. In an unlikely event, if the
Company is unable to secure the coal and iron ore linkages, it will identify allernative possibilities of operating the plant based on boughl out coal and
iron ore. JSW Steel Limited, the holding company has, vide its letter dated April 23, 2019, confirmed its uncondilional financial support to he
Company to enable it to continue as a going concern till such lime the implementation of the Project commences

In the interim, the Company has subleased/transferred 133 acres of land (~128 acres of Leasehold land and ~5 acres of Freehold land) to JSW
Cement Limited, a JSW group company, for setting up of a cemenl plant, after obtaining necessary approvals from the Governmenl in accordance
wilh the lease agreement, Besides, the Company has also lel oul certain buildings for the use of lhe employees of the cemenl planl.

"Considering the above, the Board of Directors are of the opinion that none of its assets is impaired as at 31 March 2019 and the going concern
assumption is appropriate.”

Note 23.12




Note 23.13

Standards issued but not yet effectlve

Ind AS 116 Leases was notified on March 30, 2019 and it replaces Ind AS 17 Leases, including appendices thereto. Ind AS 116 is effective for annual
periods beginning on or after April 1, 2019. Ind AS 116 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases
and requires lessees to account for all leases under a single on-balance sheet model similar to the accounting for finance leases under Ind AS 17.
The standard includes two recognition exemptions for lessees — leases of 'low-value’ assets (e.g., personal computers) and short-term leases (i.e.,
leases with a lease term of 12 months or less). At the commencement date of a lease, a lessee will recognise a liability to make lease payments (i.e.,
the lease liability) and an asset representing the right to use the underlying asset during the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use asset). Lessees will be
required to separately recognise the interest expense on the lease liability and the depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset.

Lessees will be also required to remeasure the lease liability upon the occurrence of certain events (e.g., a change in the lease term, a change in
future lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine those payments). The lessee will generally recognise the amount
of the remeasurement of the lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset.

Lessor accounting under Ind AS 116 is substantially unchanged from today's accounting under Ind AS 17. Lessors will continue to classify all leases
using the same classification principle as in Ind AS 17 and distinguish between two types of leases: operating and finance leases.

The Company intends to adopt this standard when its become effective. The Company is still in the process of evaluating the impact of the Standard
on its Financial Statements.
Other changes to Ind AS
In addition to Ind AS 116, the MCA has also notified the following changes to Ind AS 116 which are effective from financial year beginning 1 April
2019. The Company will adopt these changes from the date effective; however, the adoption of these changes is unlikely to have any impact on the
financial statements:
Appendix C to Ind AS 12 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatment
Amendments to Ind AS 109: Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation
Amendments to Ind AS 19: Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement
Amendments to Ind AS 28: Long-term interests in associates and joint ventures
Annual improvement to Ind AS (2018);
These improvements include:
Amendments to Ind AS 103: Party to a Joint Arrangements obtains control of a business that is a Joint Operation
Amendments to Ind AS 111: Joint Arrangements
Amendments to Ind AS 12: Income Taxes
Amendments to Ind AS 23: Borrowing Costs
Note 23.14
The figures of previous years were audited by a firm of Chartered Accountants other than M/s. SR B C & Co. LLP.
Note 23.156

Previous year's figures have been regrouped / rearranged wherever necessary, to conform to current year's presentation
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